# Holistic Progression Network: Future of the financial system

Niranjan Kaur

Submitted to OCAD University in partial fulfilment of the requirements for the degree of

Master of Design in Strategic Foresight and Innovation

Toronto, Ontario, Canada, 2024

# "The More Equitable Future Begins in the Imagination"

MARINA GORBIS, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, IFTF (2024)

# Copyright

This work is licensed under Creative Commons Attribution-NonCommercial-ShareAlike 4.0 International (CC BY-NC-SA 4.0). To view a copy of this license, visit <u>https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by-nc-sa/4.0/</u>

#### You are free to:

Share — copy and redistribute the material in any medium or format.

Adapt — remix, transform, and build upon the material.

The licensor cannot revoke these freedoms as long as you follow the license terms.

#### Under the following terms:

Attribution — You must give appropriate credit, provide a link to the license, and indicate if changes were made. You may do so in any reasonable manner, but not in any way that suggests the licensor endorses you or your use.

NonCommercial — You may not use the material for commercial purposes.

ShareAlike — If you remix, transform, or build upon the material, you must distribute your contributions under the same license as the original.

No additional restrictions — You may not apply legal terms or technological measures that legally restrict others from doing anything the license permits.

#### With the understanding that:

You do not have to comply with the license for elements of the material in the public domain or where your use is permitted by an applicable exception or limitation.

No warranties are given. The license may not give you all of the permissions necessary for your intended use. For example, other rights such as publicity, privacy, or moral rights may limit how you use the material.

# Abstract

This project explores the transformative potential of integrating artificial intelligence (AI) and decentralized technologies to reimagine the financial landscape. Grounded in an understanding of fundamental human needs and the evolving nature of work, the project employs a multi-faceted methodology to envision a future where economic exchange transcends traditional paradigms. Through scenarios depicting a richly imagined future, the project illuminates opportunities for stakeholders across sectors, including education and innovation. Central to the framework is the concept of the Holistic Progression Network, a dynamic ecosystem where individuals accumulate and exchange tokens representing various forms of value. By fostering real-value exchange and redefining the purpose of work, the framework advocates for a holistic approach to economic development that prioritizes human well-being, self-actualization, and collective progress. The project concludes with actionable insights and disclosures, inviting stakeholders to participate in shaping a future characterized by resilience, innovation, and inclusivity.

# Acknowledgements

First, I extend my heartfelt gratitude to my advisor Prof. Alexander Manu for his invaluable guidance, unwavering support, and insightful feedback throughout the process. I am indebted to his expertise and encouragement which played a pivotal role in elevating the quality and scope of this project by transforming my mindset.

Additionally, I am incredibly thankful to OCAD University for providing resources and facilities essential for realization of this project.

I am also grateful to my peers in the Strategic Foresight and Innovation program who offered thoughtful discussions and encouragement at various stages of this project.

Finally, I express my gratitude to my family and loved ones for their understanding and encouragement during this endeavor.

This project would not have been possible without the collective support of everyone mentioned above.

# Table of Contents

Copyright	ii
Abstract	iii
Acknowledgements	iv
Introduction	3
Context	3
Significance of the project	6
Methodology	6
SECTION 1	8
On Needs and Purpose	9
Human Self Interest	9
Purpose of Work	10
Fundamental Human Needs in Focus: A Day in tokens	12
On Opportunities and Stakeholders	15
Understanding Stakeholders	15
AI for Future Opportunities	17
Storyline for the Future	20
Redefinition	22
Impact on the Earning Structure	22
Redefining Purpose of Work	23
Facilitating Real-Value Exchange	23
Sector-specific Transformations: Education	24
SECTION 2	28
Richly Imagined Future	29
Introducing the Holistic Progression Network	30

32
34
34
36
38
39
43
44

Table of Figures:

Figure 1 A Day in Tokens (Source: Author)	12
Figure 2 Redefined Earning Structure (Source: Author)	22
Figure 3 Stakeholder Map: Education Sector (Source: Author)	25

# Introduction

The financial landscape is undergoing significant transformation, driven by technological advancements such as Artificial Intelligence (AI), changing societal values, and the need for more equitable systems. This project explores possibilities in an idealized future where fundamental human needs are recognized as basic rights and guaranteed to all individuals. By eliminating economic barriers to essential resources and adopting a decentralized, value token-based economy, this project envisions a financial system that prioritizes human flourishing over mere economic growth. Through storytelling and scenario-based analysis, the project highlights the transformative potential of this vision in creating a more equitable and sustainable future.

# Context

The evolution of financial systems spans millennia, encapsulating humanity's pursuit of efficient exchange mechanisms and innovative solutions. From the early days of bartering to the modern era of centralized structures and the recent resurgence of decentralized finance (DeFi), this journey showcases the adaptability and ingenuity of human civilization.

In ancient times, the barter system served as the cornerstone of economic transactions, where goods were exchanged directly without the need for a standardized medium. However, the inefficiencies inherent in this system prompted the development of commodity money, consisting of items with intrinsic value such as gold and silver. Subsequently, representative money emerged, utilizing paper certificates backed by tangible assets like gold or silver. This innovation simplified transactions and laid the groundwork for the modern fiat currency system we know today. Centralized financial systems began to dominate as economies grew, ushering in an era of regulatory oversight facilitated by central banks. (Martchouk, 2024)

However, technological advancements catalyzed a paradigm shift towards decentralization. Blockchain technology, underpinning cryptocurrencies, has paved the way for DeFi—an ecosystem characterized by peer-to-peer transactions, smart contracts, decentralized exchanges, and innovative yield farming mechanisms. (Tapscott, 2021)

The history of the exchange of goods and services between human beings started in a decentralized manner, but changed into our present centralized, regulated financial system. In recent past, we have witnessed a resurgence of decentralized finance, driven by technological advancements. DeFi platforms allow individuals to always retain ownership of their assets. Users maintain control over their digital assets, which are stored in decentralized wallets and accessible through private keys. This ownership model ensures that individuals have full sovereignty over their assets and can freely transfer or exchange them as they see fit.

As DeFi platforms continue to gain traction, they hold the promise of significantly advancing financial inclusion, particularly in underserved regions of the world. By offering banking-like services without the need for traditional financial institutions, DeFi platforms present a viable alternative for populations lacking access to conventional banking services, especially in developing countries. Moreover, small businesses stand to benefit from easier access to loans and capital, circumventing the bureaucratic hurdles and exorbitant fees often associated with traditional banks. This accessibility results entrepreneurship by providing avenues for funding that were previously inaccessible. Furthermore, the environmental impact of DeFi platforms is also undergoing positive transformation, with platforms incentivized to adopt more energy-efficient consensus algorithms to appeal to environmentally conscious users. As competition drives innovation, DeFi platforms are poised to contribute to a more sustainable future while revolutionizing the financial landscape.

Since tokens represent a fundamental aspect of DeFi and blockchain ecosystems, facilitating the exchange of value, one of the primary functions of tokens is to serve as digital representations of assets, both tangible and intangible. As tokens become increasingly integrated into various industries and use cases, their value proposition extends beyond speculative trading to encompass broader applications in finance, gaming, supply chain management, and more. Recently, fan tokens, a type of utility token, have emerged in the sports and entertainment industry, allowing fans to engage with their favorite teams or artists through exclusive experiences, voting rights, or rewards programs (Lielacher, 2023). As the adoption of blockchain and tokenization continues to grow, these digital assets could evolve into widely accepted forms of currency, offering benefits such as transparency, security, and efficiency in transactions. Moreover, tokens enable new models of ownership and value creation, paving the way for innovative economic systems and decentralized communities in the future.

Furthermore, as tokens play a pivotal role in the exchange of value within decentralized ecosystems, redefining traditional notions of value exchange, it provokes the

reimagining of our relationship with value. Rushkoff (2018) offers an exploration of how we can transform our understanding of money and its role in society. By challenging the fundamental nature of currency, he delves into alternative approaches that prioritize community well-being over wealth accumulation.

Additionally, Rushkoff (2018) challenges the prevailing notion that money must always grow. Instead, he proposes a shift toward money as a utility for exchange rather than an extractor of value. By reimagining money systems, it is possible encourage admirable human behavior, peer-to-peer value exchange, and trust. This approach transcends the relentless pursuit of growth and fosters a more balanced and sustainable economic ecosystem.

Similarly, Manu (2023b) delves into the exchange that happens in the nature without the use of any currency. He proposes a departure from viewing value as a mere representation or abstraction and embracing a perspective where it becomes inseparable from the system's vitality. Realizing such a transformation necessitates the active involvement of technological tools such as artificial intelligence, blockchain technologies, and sensor networks, which would serve as digital facilitators of value exchange like those in natural ecosystems. As we confront global challenges necessitating resilient, self-sustaining systems, this reconceptualization becomes not just an ideological pursuit but a pragmatic necessity.

As we contemplate the implications of advancing technologies, it becomes imperative to explore innovative solutions that promote resilience. Emphasizing the importance of envisioning alternative futures, it is essential to recognize the invaluable role of creativity in shaping our collective trajectory. For instance, artists, often at the forefront of imagining new possibilities, offer valuable perspectives on how we can redefine success and fulfillment in a changing world (Gorbis, 2024).

Withing this context, where the intersection of technology and human behavior shapes the trajectory of markets and institutions, embracing creativity and imagination becomes paramount. The intention is to envision a financial system that is not only prosperous but also promotes social and economic justice. On beginning this journey of exploration, the goal is to chart the path towards a more equitable and inclusive future, where individuals can thrive and contribute meaningfully to society.

# Significance of the project

The significance of this research project lies in its call for change, urging the harnessing of technological advancements, particularly AI, to propel societal progress forward. AI presents unprecedented opportunities to revolutionize various facets of society, including the financial system. This project advocates for a departure from traditional economic models that prioritize mere economic growth over holistic human flourishing.

By framing essentials as 'tokens' and emphasizing the disparities in access and distribution, the project prompts a critical reevaluation of societal structures, urging stakeholders to address systemic injustices and strive for greater equity. Additionally, by aligning the cost and distribution of essentials more closely with their intrinsic value, technological advancements have the capacity to revolutionize economies and foster greater equality. This underscores the urgent need to integrate technology into resource management to address critical issues such as food security, housing, and water scarcity.

Furthermore, the project is deeply rooted in Maslow's hierarchy of needs, suggesting that meeting fundamental needs more efficiently can unlock opportunities for individuals to pursue self-actualization. By connecting economic considerations to broader humanistic goals like creativity, innovation, and community service, the project highlights the potential for holistic human development. This holistic approach to human well-being is essential for fostering a progressive society that values individual fulfillment alongside economic prosperity.

Finally, this foresight project also provides a roadmap to a richly imagined future, by envisioning a future where AI facilitates equitable access to resources and fosters innovation. By inspiring stakeholders to embrace bold initiatives and collaborative efforts, this project aims to create a more equitable and resilient financial ecosystem for future generations.

# Methodology

The methodology for this project involves a multi-faceted approach that explores the interplay between human needs, emerging opportunities, and richly imagined scenarios in the context of AI-driven transformations.

In Section-1, to understand needs and purpose, key texts such as Hannah Arendt's "The Human Condition" and Erich Fromm's "To Have or to Be" are analyzed to gain insights

into fundamental human needs and values. These texts offer valuable perspectives on human nature, identity, and purpose, which are crucial for understanding individuals' motivations.

In addition, a close examination of "The Wealth of Nations" by Adam Smith elucidates the concept of human self-interest and its implications for economic behavior. Smith's work provides foundational insights into the rational pursuit of self-interest as a driving force behind economic activities.

Further, the Opportunity Canvas has been employed to identify future opportunities with AI and determine the narrative for the future. This informs redefinition of various concepts such as the earning structure and the purpose of work. This phase will involve examining how AI technologies reshape traditional employment models, skill requirements, and income distribution, as well as redefining the notion of work. Moreover, sector-specific transformations, particularly in education, has been examined to understand how the redefinition of work, purpose and the earning system impacts learning paradigms and skill development.

In Section-2, a richly imagined future (Manu, 2020b) demonstrated through multiple scenarios. By exploring scenarios, the project demonstrates the range of possibilities and implications associated with the redefined system due the integration of AI. Ultimately, in Section-3, these scenarios will inform the disclosure of innovative products and ideas, offering concrete manifestations of the envisioned future and providing actionable insights for stakeholders.



# **On Needs and Purpose**

## **Human Self Interest**

Self-interest pertains to "individual actions and behaviors" that lead to favorable personal gains. Over time, economists have delved into the concept of self-interest and the actions driven by it to formulate economic theories and assumptions.

In "The Wealth of Nations" by Adam Smith, one of the central themes is the role of selfinterest in driving economic behavior and contributing to the overall prosperity of a society. Smith observed that individuals are naturally inclined to act in their self-interest. People work, produce, and trade because they seek to improve their own well-being, whether by earning a living, accumulating wealth, or satisfying their wants and needs. He saw this self-interest as a powerful motivator for economic activity.

Smith introduced the idea of the "invisible hand" to describe how self-interested actions of individuals can lead to positive outcomes for society. When individuals produce goods or provide services in pursuit of profit, they inadvertently contribute to the greater good by supplying society with the products and services it needs.

Additionally, Smith also believed that self-interest and competition were closely linked. When individuals or businesses compete for customers, they are driven to improve the quality of their products, reduce costs, and innovate. This competition benefits consumers by providing them with better goods and services at lower prices. Furthermore, markets tend to allocate resources efficiently when left to their own devices. In a competitive marketplace driven by self-interest, resources are directed toward their most valued uses. Prices adjust based on supply and demand, helping to ensure that resources are allocated where they are most needed.

In today's context, our understanding of self-interest encompasses broader dimensions beyond immediate financial gains. (CBR – Economics, 2020). Can we view self-interest to have evolved from a narrow focus on financial gain to a more holistic consideration of value creation? This shift reflects a broader societal awareness of the interconnectedness of economic prosperity, environmental sustainability, and social wellbeing. Individuals and organizations are increasingly recognizing that pursuing valuedriven initiatives can lead to long-term benefits for both them and society (Murphy, 2024).

Smith's self-interest, when rightly understood, encourages virtue that safeguards both individuals and their communities (Hill, 2018). By reframing self-interest in terms of value creation, individuals and organizations can align their actions with broader societal goals and contribute to the development of a more equitable and sustainable financial system.

With individuals driven by a desire for value, this shift represents a fundamental change in mindset, emphasizing sustainable success over short-term profits. This shift also prompts a deeper examination of the underlying motivations and aspirations that drive individuals in their work. By exploring the purpose of work, we can gain insights into the changing landscape of work due to shift in values in the society.

# **Purpose of Work**

Hannah Arendt (1958), in her exploration of labour, work, and action, underscores the importance of meaningful engagement in shaping the human condition. According to her, labour is aligned with the naturalistic biological functions of the human body. The processes of "growth, metabolism, and eventual decay" are intricately bound to the essential requirements that are produced by labour and then consumed to survive to labour again. In other words, labour is cyclical and "the human condition of labour is life itself." It has a "purposeless regularity" associated with it, and that in a way is also a source of happiness. She follows this by defining work as an activity which relates to the "unnaturalness of human existence." Work involves the creation of enduring objects and contributes to an "artificial world of things", fundamentally distinct from the natural environment. Work has been described as a linear process with the end goal/purpose of creating something. "The human condition of work is worldliness," that is the creation of worth and meaning.

Arendt (1958) also defines action as the unique human capacity to engage in spontaneous and unpredictable activities within the public realm, characterized by the presence of others. It involves the initiation of new beginnings, the manifestation of freedom, and the creation of shared meaning and significance through interactions with other individuals. In comparison, Arendt states that labor pertains to the inherent biological functions of the human being, whereas work (along with action) is what renders the human condition uniquely human.

This concept of the human condition resonates with Fromm's (1976) idea that true fulfillment comes not from the accumulation of material possessions but from the genuine expression of one's creativity and the contribution to a shared environment.

Fromm (1976) argues for a shift from a materialistic orientation to a more compassionate and authentic way of being. In a society that values self-discovery, creativity, and meaningful relationships over the relentless pursuit of possessions, individuals can find a deeper sense of purpose. This aligns with Arendt's vision of a society where the human capacity for action—engaging with others in the public realm is central to a fulfilling existence.

The envisioned future encourages a reevaluation of the purpose of work, moving beyond the creation of "objects of use" to a more profound exploration of human potential. It calls for an emphasis on meaningful and creative contributions that lead to a sense of identity and purpose.

The challenge before us lies in the task of redefining the purpose and contribution in a society where work, as traditionally understood, has undergone a fundamental transformation (Manu, 2020a). The philosophical underpinnings of Hannah Arendt and Erich Fromm urge us to move beyond conventional notions of work (and productivity). In a reimagined landscape, the concept of work extends beyond the transactional and utilitarian aspects to become a meaningful expression of our individual and collective abilities.



# Fundamental Human Needs in Focus: A Day in tokens

Figure 1 A Day in Tokens (Source: Author)

The above flowchart (see Figure 1) illustrates how different tokens are connected and how often they are exchanged in a day. Some of the most repeated ones are also the most essential tokens required for almost all activities and basic survival. However, if an example of nature and wildlife is considered, various living beings thrive with essentials effortlessly available to them. Tokens such as food, water or shelter are not needed for survival of, for example, a lion who can quench its thirst from a water body, hunt for food and find shelter in natural caves without any tokens. A stark contrast emerges when we delve into human life, where the tokens required for existence carry a weight far beyond their intrinsic value.

Take, for instance, the Water token, which flows freely for a lion, is subject to distribution mechanisms, economic considerations, and, at times, geopolitical dynamics. Its value surpasses mere sustenance, becoming a currency of privilege and accessibility.

Consider the Shelter Token, a fundamental need that, in the natural world, manifests in the form of habitats created instinctively by creatures. Yet, in human life, the Shelter Token is intricately linked to socio-economic factors. The valuation of tokens becomes even more pronounced in the context of Food Tokens. While nature provides sustenance without prejudice, human societies introduce layers of complexity.

However, tokens associated with personal care—Dental Care, Grooming, Skin Care, and more—bear a unique weight in human society. In the wilderness, animals tend to their well-being instinctively, devoid of tokens and transactions. Contrastingly, in the human context, these tokens become gatekeepers to societal acceptance, professional success, and personal confidence.

The question to be asked is why is human life different with respect to value placed on tokens beyond their actual value? Why does the value of food surpass the basic elements needed for its cultivation, such as seeds, soil, water, and time? In the context of shelter, why does the provision of a roof, walls, furniture, and other essentials for climate control become disproportionately expensive compared to their fundamental functionality? Considering that water is self-evident, collectible, and naturally disposed of everywhere, what factors contribute to the complexities and value associated with its access and distribution in human societies?

And the answers to the above questions may seem straightforward considering distribution systems, processing, packaging, and market dynamics. Additionally, labour costs also result in disproportionate values. While water is abundant and naturally

occurring, the complexities and value associated with its access stem from factors like infrastructure development and water treatment processes among others.

However, in the scenario which widely adopts AI and automation, the potential for the value of these essentials has the possibility to move closer to its true worth in the future. For instance, in agriculture and food production, the optimization of processes and the reduction of manual labor through automation hold the potential to substantially lower food costs. Similarly, the construction industry stands to benefit from the integration of automation and AI, presenting opportunities to decrease labor costs and enhance overall efficiency in shelter construction. Additionally, in case of water treatment and distribution systems, automation promises can lead to efficiency and reduced operational costs.

Based on Maslow's theory of human motivation (1943), beyond the fundamental requirements for survival such as food, shelter, and safety, humans possess an innate drive to grow, develop, and realize their unique capacities. Therefore, once our basic needs are met, we can aspire toward self-actualization—a journey of personal fulfillment and reaching our highest potential. As individuals progress along this path, they engage in quest for meaningful experiences, the expression of personal values, and the alignment of actions with intrinsic motivations and purpose in life.

The pursuit of self-actualization holds immense potential for benefiting both society and economies across various dimensions. Firstly, self-actualized individuals often possess a heightened sense of creativity and innovation, leading to the generation of novel ideas, inventions, and artistic expressions. In turn, societies that foster creative thinking are more likely to witness advancements in technology and experience economic growth. Moreover, self-actualization encourages entrepreneurship and risk-taking, driving economic development through the creation of new ventures. Additionally, self-actualized individuals often seek purpose beyond personal gain, actively contributing to community service and philanthropic initiatives, thereby promoting positive social change. Finally, self-actualized leaders are inclined toward long-term vision and sustainability, prioritizing goals that benefit both society and the environment. In summary, the pursuit of self-actualization extends far beyond individual fulfillment, radiating outward to positively impact communities, economies, and the world at large.

# **On Opportunities and Stakeholders**

# **Understanding Stakeholders**

#### Financial Institutions:

Financial institutions/service providers, are actively embracing emerging technologies to automate processes, enhance customer experiences, and gain a competitive edge in the market. These organizations are leveraging AI in various areas such as automation of back-office processes, implementation of chatbots for customer service, and utilization of machine learning algorithms for risk assessment and fraud detection (Hamilton & Waschuk 2022). The adoption of AI is primarily driven by the desire for operational efficiency, improved customer satisfaction, and the need to stay ahead in an increasingly digital and competitive landscape.

#### Consumers:

Consumers will play a central role in shaping the future of the financial system, driving changes in customer needs, preferences, and behaviors. Both retail and institutional customers demand increasingly tailored and personalized services from financial institutions, with a focus on meeting their specific needs and expectations (O'Reilly et al., 2021). Additionally, consumers expect reduction in "effort", "cost" and increase in "speed" of financial tasks and services (Pagé, 2019). Thus, reducing friction remains key to consumers' self-interest. Furthermore, as the financial industry begins to rely heavily on customer data to extract value and generate income, some common challenges that organizations encounter are customer resistance. Customers remain hesitant to provide personal data and would prefer to have a choice in providing the same. Therefore, building consumer trust is imperative on the path to future of financial system.

#### **Regulators and Policy Makers:**

Regulators and government authorities play a crucial role in ensuring compliance with laws and regulations for responsible technology adoption while safeguarding the public interest (OSFI 2023). Ethical considerations such as bias and transparency in AI algorithms are also important factors to address. They are responsible for ensuring compliance, consumer protection, and maintaining financial stability.

#### Technology Providers:

As smart devices, wearable technology, and virtual and augmented reality (VR/AR) continue to advance rapidly, technology providers are assured to shape the future by offering increasingly convenient and interconnected solutions to consumers. The growing trend of smart homes, where lighting, temperature, entertainment, and other functions can be controlled effortlessly, exemplifies how these innovations are reshaping daily routines (Quantum Foresight, n.d.). These developments signal the potential for integrated financial and value exchange management systems that allow users to monitor and control their transactions with ease.

In addition, these advancements offer opportunities to enhance convenience and connectivity in consumers' financial experiences. For example, wearable devices can enable seamless payment transactions, while VR/AR technology may revolutionize how individuals interact with financial data and investment platforms. As technology evolves, it will exert a profound influence on both personal and professional spheres, giving rise to innovative business models that prioritize user-centric experiences and accessibility.

#### Workforce:

The future of finance will be significantly shaped by the workforce's adaptation to automation and technological advancements. While automation streamlines repetitive tasks, it also presents an opportunity for professionals to refocus their efforts on strategic, creative, and abstract endeavors. Rather than competing with machines on productivity and efficiency, individuals could leverage automation to enhance their problem-solving capabilities and drive innovation.

Moreover, the rise of the gig economy and changing workforce expectations serve as signals for the future of work. With an increasing number of individuals opting for gig work, traditional notions of employment are being challenged. Workers seek flexibility, autonomy, and opportunities for personal and professional growth, reshaping the employer-employee dynamic. The evolving nature of work also triggers a transformation in education and skill development. As individuals evolve to prioritize creativity, critical thinking, and problem-solving, educational institutions are adapting their curricula to equip students with the necessary skills for the future workforce. This shift emphasizes lifelong learning that can keep pace with technological innovation.

#### Fintech:

Fintech, the integration of digital technology into financial services, is playing a pivotal role in shaping the future of finance. This digital revolution is enhancing accessibility to financial services for individuals and businesses. By leveraging digital technologies, fintech is breaking down barriers to financial access, lowering transaction costs, and offering more tailored services to meet the diverse needs of consumers, including those in underserved communities. To harness the full potential of fintech and ensure its benefits are widely distributed, policymakers must embrace fintech opportunities and implement policies that facilitate safe financial innovation and adoption. (Feyen et al., 2023)

#### International Organizations:

Organizations such as the International Monetary Fund (IMF), World Bank, etc. play a global role in shaping financial regulations, standards, and best practices. They collaborate with governments, financial institutions, and other stakeholders to promote financial stability and inclusive economic growth.

# **AI for Future Opportunities**

To understand the impact and potential opportunities with AI, the Opportunity Canvas (see Appendix A) allows for a structured approach to gaining a foundational understanding of how a disruptive technology, such as AI, could redefine the society as we know it (Manu 2023a). By exploring real-world examples and analyzing current and future trends, effective assessment of the transformative potential of AI is made possible. The main elements of the canvas such as technology description, current applications, future opportunities, and ethical and economic implications result in insights that inform the storyline for the future. Additionally, the storyline for the future outlines a vision that further enables visualization of potential scenarios where AI has disrupted existing paradigms.

Currently at its hype, AI has become increasingly prevalent across various domains, revolutionizing the way individuals interact with technology and enhancing operational efficiency across industries. In personalized experiences, AI algorithms analyze user data to tailor content, recommendations, and services based on individual preferences and behavior. This personalization extends to assistants, such as virtual chatbots and voice assistants like Siri and Alexa, which provide personalized responses and assistance to users in real-time. Personalized learning platforms leverage AI to adapt educational content and learning experiences to individual students' learning styles, resulting in more effective and engaging learning outcomes.

Further in the education sector, metaverse classrooms are leveraging mixed reality technologies to create immersive and interactive learning environments (Miner, 2023). These virtual classrooms offer students the opportunity to explore diverse subjects and concepts in a dynamic and engaging manner. Concurrently, educational technology (Edtech) is playing a pivotal role in fostering engaging and collaborative learning experiences. Through interactive and personalized tools, students can actively participate in their learning process, collaborate with peers, and access a wealth of resources tailored to their individual needs (Sciforce, 2023). Furthermore, the concept of lifelong learning is gaining prominence in education, emphasizing the importance of continuous skill development and knowledge acquisition throughout one's lifetime. Al plays a pivotal role in supporting lifelong learning by offering personalized experiences, automating tasks, and enhancing educational outcomes (Rouhiainen, 2019).

In healthcare, AI algorithms analyze medical data to assist in diagnostics, treatment planning, and drug discovery, while in human resources, AI streamlines recruitment, talent management, and employee engagement processes. Moreover, the adoption of blockchain technology in areas like health insurance and fund management offers opportunities for increased transparency, security, and scalability, revolutionizing traditional practices in these sectors (Chang, MPH & Friedman, n.d.)

The emergence of virtual societies presents opportunities for governing and managing communities in novel ways, leveraging digital platforms to enhance participation and decision-making processes. For instance, Estonia's e-residency program enables individuals from anywhere in the world to become digital residents of the country, granting access to its digital infrastructure and services. Through this program, participants can establish and manage businesses remotely, contributing to the country's economy and fostering cross-border collaboration. Additionally, e-Estonia leverages blockchain technology for secure and transparent digital transactions, enhancing trust in governmental processes and enabling efficient delivery of services. (Nommik, 2024)

The advent of token economics and central bank digital currencies (CBDCs) is modernizing financial systems and driving the transition towards cashless societies. Programmable money and creator empowerment models are reshaping the way individuals generate income online, while fractional ownership and publicizing financial transactions through cryptocurrencies offer new avenues for investment and financial transparency. (Quantum Foresight 2022) In the evolving landscape of work, several trends are reshaping traditional employment models. The rise of the side hustle culture has ushered in an era of passive income opportunities, where individuals engage in entrepreneurial ventures alongside their primary occupations (Berger, 2023). Meanwhile, the emergence of corporate synthetic media presents a promising avenue for enhancing communication and marketing efforts through innovative content creation (Dirik, 2020). Additionally, augmented reality and virtual reality technologies are revolutionizing training and field simulation, providing immersive learning experiences for workers across diverse sectors. Amidst concerns about automation, there is growing recognition of the potential for AI-augmented work, where machine learning systems complement human labor, leading to more efficient and collaborative workflows (Armstrong, 2023). These trends underscore the dynamic nature of the modern workplace, emphasizing the need for adaptability and innovation in navigating the future of work.

These applications and trends result in abundant opportunities for the future:

- There is opportunity for transition towards the exchange of real value. AI technologies have the potential to revolutionize traditional economic models by enabling more efficient and transparent transactions based on the exchange of tangible assets, services, or experiences of genuine value. Moreover, AI facilitates personalized recommendations and matching algorithms, allowing individuals to connect with opportunities that align closely with their needs and preferences, thereby enhancing the overall value proposition of exchange.
- Exchange of services and value beyond physical infrastructure and transcends borders, revolutionizing traditional paradigms such as education, finance, and work. With AI-enabled platforms, individuals can access education without the constraints of physical schools, engage in finance without traditional banking structures, and pursue work without the limitations of offices, wages, or salaries.
- This shift towards decentralized structures and the sharing economy fosters collaboration among multiple businesses, leading to the emergence of e-societies where interconnected digital governance transcends geographical boundaries.
- As AI replaces entry-level and labor-intensive jobs, organizations can redirect cost-savings and gains towards the community and other benefits aimed at economic growth and development.
- Education to focus on skill-acquisition as opposed to knowledge-acquisition, thus enabling students to develop essential skills such as critical thinking, problemsolving, creativity, collaboration, and communication.

 Furthermore, AI-driven innovations in healthcare, such as individualized medicine and e-healthcare services, empower individuals to take control of their health and well-being. AI algorithms can analyze medical data to personalize treatment plans and prescriptions, leading to better health outcomes and improved patient experiences.

Overall, the future driven by AI presents vast opportunities for value creation, collaboration, and societal advancement. By harnessing the transformative potential of AI-enabled technologies, individuals and organizations can navigate towards a future characterized by innovation, efficiency, and prosperity.

# **Storyline for the Future**

In this envisioned future, the global economy operates on the foundation of data exchange, where individuals and businesses utilize their data assets as a form of currency. Facilitated by secure and transparent systems, AI plays a pivotal role in managing and optimizing data utilization, fostering an ecosystem where data drives economic growth.

This digital landscape seamlessly blends virtual and physical realities, offering individuals a diverse array of experiences and opportunities. From conducting business transactions to accessing personalized healthcare and education solutions, the possibilities within this interconnected ecosystem are endless.

Gone are the days of relying solely on monetary currency; instead, people engage in the exchange of tangible value, including personalized skills and data, for both personal and communal benefit. This paradigm shift empowers individuals to offer their expertise and personal data in exchange for customized services, exclusive experiences, and personalized incentives.

Material scarcity becomes a thing of the past as collaborative efforts within e-societies ensure the equitable distribution of resources and services. With the elimination of scarcity, work evolves from a means of survival to a source of personal fulfillment and contribution to communal well-being.

The rise of AI and automation replaces entry-level and labor-intensive jobs, allowing for the redirection of cost savings toward community skilling initiatives and human development. This, coupled with the redefinition of work, leads to decentralized structures where various entities collaborate, replacing traditional employer-employee relationships and fostering a more dynamic and inclusive economic landscape.

# Redefinition

# **Impact on the Earning Structure**

As robotics and AI continue to advance rapidly, a transformative shift is anticipated as labour jobs is replaced. As a result, workers increasingly transition from traditional employment to the gig economy further leading to redundancy in higher education which offers required qualifications for entry-level jobs (Tal, n.d.). In this scenario, global governments will be expected to implement urgent measures to revive their economies. Government bodies could undertake revisions to policies related to employment, education, taxation, and social welfare funding, based on a new societal framework.

The transformation in the labour and work urges for a solution that to address the basic needs of individuals. One of the potential solutions could be a universal basic income (UBI), which would require re-channelizing of existing funding methods. However, it is essential to note that the key idea is ensure equitable access to essential resources and infrastructure for individuals to have their basic needs met. For instance, IFTF (2017) proposed the concept of Universal Basic Assets (UBA) as promising framework for fostering economic inclusion and addressing wealth disparities. By advocating for inclusive business models and investment strategies, the UBA framework seeks to empower communities with access to essential resources such as spaces, natural resources, infrastructure, capital, data, know-how, communities, and power (Gorbis, 2024).



Figure 2 Redefined Earning Structure (Source: Author)

In a society where automation and artificial intelligence are responsible for labour, output is increased resulting in high income (see Figure 2). These increasing earnings could be channeled to ensure a basic income for all citizens and initiatives that lead to betterment of the society.

This model acknowledges the evolving nature of work as well as the broader goals of societal progress. In the realm of post-scarcity economics, where goods and services are abundantly produced with minimal human labor, rendering them accessible to all at little to no cost. This paradigm shift will fundamentally alter societal values, as individuals shift their focus from accumulating financial wealth to deriving self-worth from their contributions and accomplishments. In this future, the measure of prestige will no longer be determined by wealth accumulation but by the meaningful impact one makes through their actions. As such, the evolution towards a post-scarcity economy heralds a profound transformation in the way individuals perceive and define success and fulfillment.

# **Redefining Purpose of Work**

With the material abundance and a sense of purpose, the concept of work shifts from being a means of survival to a form of personal fulfillment, and contribution to the communal well-being. This redefinition of work allows individuals to pursue activities that align with their interests, leading to a diversification of occupations and a greater emphasis on creativity.

Moreover, the advent of AI and machines can seamlessly replace entry-level and laborintensive jobs. The resulting cost savings and high income can also be redirected into community skilling initiatives and the provision of other benefits aimed at human development. This, combined with the redefinition of work, can result in decentralized structures where diverse entities serve one another, replacing the conventional employer-employee relationships — to technologically-driven and post-labor landscape. Ultimately, this shift represents a transition towards an economy where the exchange of real value, encompassing skills, services, and contributions, takes precedence over conventional transactions.

# **Facilitating Real-Value Exchange**

Individuals are on a journey of self-discovery, and the pursuit of knowledge is an inherent part of personal growth. Engaging in the exchange of tangible value, including

personalized skills and knowledge, becomes a norm for both personal and communal benefit. The exchange of real value has empowered individuals to offer their unique services and data in exchange for goods, experiences, or knowledge.

Tokens become the tangible representation of intellect and skills, circulating within a vast and dynamic knowledge economy. These tokens aren't just symbols; they're practical assets earned through actively contributing unique insights to the growing pool of collective wisdom. Every innovative idea, every problem solved, and every creative breakthrough adds to an individual's token reserve. It's a direct correlation between one's intellectual contributions and the tokens earned, creating a merit-based system that fuels continuous learning and collaborative efforts.

These knowledge tokens aren't static, they're dynamic. First and foremost, they serve as gateways to various educational resources. The more tokens one accumulates, the broader one's access to advanced learning experiences.

Beyond education, these tokens are the currency of collaboration. Individuals can leverage their accumulated tokens to participate in collaborative endeavors, forming interdisciplinary teams and pooling intellectual resources to tackle complex challenges. Tokens become the bridge connecting minds across diverse fields in this seamless integration of individual expertise.

The tokens also operate as a form of decentralized currency. One can use intellectual currency not just within knowledge platforms but in everyday transactions. Whether to access a unique experience, buy a piece of digital art, or even contribute to a charitable cause, knowledge tokens are the versatile currency that enable these actions.

This system creates a powerful incentive for individuals to actively engage in the exchange of knowledge, fostering a collaborative ecosystem where the value of intellectual contributions is not just recognized but directly tied to access, collaboration, and participation in the broader society. It's a world where the true wealth lies not in material possessions but in the ideas, insights, and collaborative potential of each individual.

## Sector-specific Transformations: Education

A key consideration is the integration of authenticity and creativity into the core of our professional endeavours. Fromm's call for a shift from the "having" mode to the "being" mode resonates with the imperative of aligning our work with our deeper values and

aspirations. It challenges us to reconsider the relentless pursuit of possessions in favour of a more holistic, fulfilling engagement with our chosen vocations.

Amidst this transformative journey, a critical aspect is acknowledging that the redefined purpose of work is inseparable from the broader societal context. It necessitates a collective commitment to constructing a world where genuine contribution takes precedence over the mere accumulation of wealth. This shift demands not only individual introspection but also systemic changes in major sectors such as education.



Figure 3 Stakeholder Map: Education Sector (Source: Author)

In the current system (see Figure 3), different stakeholders are involved in education with different purposes:

- Prepare individuals for the workforce and economic productivity.
- A means for an individual to gain necessary skills and certification to work and earn money (accumulation of wealth for material possessions).

Questions to answer for:

- What is the purpose of education in a post-scarcity society?
- How does this transformation take place?

In a post-scarcity society where the purpose of work has transformed, traditional labour is replaced by automation and economic transactions revolve around the exchange of value tokens, education is a means of cultivating intrinsic values like creativity, critical thinking, and ethical reasoning, equipping individuals with skills for value creation. The emphasis is on collaborative learning experiences, a global perspective, and personalized learning paths. Individuals attain education to make value-based contributions, and actively engage with their communities. The goal is to empower individuals to thrive in a value exchange driven economy.

The education system appears to be designed around a holistic and interdisciplinary approach, fostering a deep understanding of various aspects of human life and the world. The educational program is structured around thematic inquiries, encouraging students to explore fundamental questions that span across different subjects.

Let's break down the key elements of this educational system:

#### Inquiry-Based Interdisciplinary Learning

The curriculum is built upon inquiry-based learning, encouraging students to explore fundamental questions in various domains. This approach promotes critical thinking, problem-solving, and a holistic understanding of the interconnectedness of knowledge.

#### **Personal Development**

The educational program emphasizes the development of the self, encompassing beliefs, values, physical and mental health, and social and spiritual well-being. This indicates a focus on nurturing well-rounded individuals who are not only academically proficient but also emotionally and socially aware.

#### **Global Perspectives**

The aim is to promote an understanding of one's place in time and space, encouraging students to explore personal histories, cultural connections, and global perspectives. This approach inculcates a sense of interconnectedness and an appreciation for diversity.

#### **Creativity and Expression**

There is a strong emphasis on how individuals discover and express ideas, feelings, and creativity. This reflects a commitment to nurturing not only cognitive skills but also artistic abilities, recognizing the importance of diverse forms of expression.

#### **Scientific Literacy**

The program includes an exploration of the natural world and scientific principles, recognizing the impact of scientific and technological advances on society and the environment. This indicates a focus on scientific literacy to prepare students for an everevolving technological landscape.

#### Social Awareness and Responsibility

Inquiries into human-made systems, communities, and societal decision-making underscore a commitment to developing socially responsible individuals. The curriculum aims to instill a sense of civic duty, an understanding of equal opportunities, and an awareness of environmental sustainability.

#### Focus on Real-World Issues

The inquiries often touch on real-world issues such as energy usage, governance systems, and wealth distribution. This indicates a practical orientation, preparing students to understand and address contemporary challenges.



# **Richly Imagined Future**

#### (See Appendix B)

In the town of Serenity Hills, where the azure sky kissed the rolling hills, a quiet revolution took root. It wasn't a rebellion against the established order but a silent uprising that whispered promises of a life unburdened by the perennial worries of survival. Here, at the break of dawn, our protagonist, Lily, opened her eyes to a world where the essentials of life were not mere commodities but sacred rights.

This evolution didn't occur overnight; it was a culmination of events, movements, and paradigm shifts that led to societal change. It began with grassroots movements advocating for the recognition of fundamental human needs as rights gained momentum. Stories of individuals struggling to access essentials like food, shelter, water, and the internet became rallying cries for a more compassionate society.

On one side of the globe, a community-driven initiative harnessed the power of technology to provide decentralized water solutions. Ingenious innovations in sustainable agriculture sprouted in another, ensuring that no one would go to bed hungry. These pockets of progress became beacons of hope, demonstrating that achieving these fundamental rights was not an insurmountable challenge. Educational initiatives fostered a deep understanding that access to essentials wasn't a privilege but a right inherent to all. Human rights movements and legal advocacy, fueled by these changing cultural tides, found resonance in courts and legislative chambers.

The world faced unprecedented crises – a global pandemic, climate-related catastrophes, and economic upheavals. These events laid bare the fragility of existing systems and prompted an introspection on societal priorities. Governments, compelled by the urgency of the moment, began to reevaluate their responsibilities towards citizens. Automation and artificial intelligence were harnessed to enhance efficiency and productivity and a surplus in resources emerged. Instead of concentrating wealth, governments redirected these resources to address the basic needs of every citizen. Internationally, collaborative efforts led by influential organizations set standards for recognizing these essentials as basic rights. A global consensus emerged, underpinned by shared goals for sustainable development and poverty eradication. The world understood that ensuring fundamental rights was not just the responsibility of individual nations but a collective endeavor.

As a result, the political landscape of Serenity Hills was a testament to the triumph of people-centric governance. Decentralized power structures ensured that every voice was considered in decision-making. Local councils, composed of impassioned citizens, shaped policies that reflected the unique needs of their communities. Lily, once a passive observer, found herself intricately woven into the fabric of participatory democracy, her opinions contributing to the symphony of collective wisdom. The societal shift was accentuated by the pulsating beat of technology, connecting every individual. Lily, with a simple gesture accessed a trove of knowledge, ideas, and possibilities. The connectivity forged new bonds, as Lily engaged in dialogues that transcended geographical boundaries, broadening her horizons, and challenging her preconceptions.

The society was shaped by self-actualized individuals, having secured their basic needs, these individuals strived for continual self-improvement and contribute meaningfully to society. They were driven by a sense of purpose, creativity, and autonomy. However, as they navigated this journey of self-actualization, there arose a need for an ecosystem that catered to their advanced aspirations beyond mere survival. The call was for structures and services that recognized the intricate layers of human potential, offering avenues for their higher-level pursuits.

As a result of collective efforts, a network was introduced — "Holistic Progression Network" (HPN), a novel system designed to cater to the multifaceted needs of self-actualized individuals.

# **Introducing the Holistic Progression Network**

**Foundations of HPN**: At the core of HPN lay a philosophy centered on holistic human development. It recognized that self-actualization encompassed intellectual pursuits, emotional well-being, creative expression, environmental consciousness, and social interconnectedness.

**Universal Basic Holism (UBH)** was the foundational concept that ensured every individual had access to the essential elements of a fulfilling life – nourishing food, comfortable shelter, clean water, and reliable internet. UBH eliminated the economic barriers to these basic rights, freeing individuals to focus on higher-order needs.

#### Tokenomics and Decentralized Governance:

• HPN operated on a decentralized blockchain, facilitating a token-based economy. Individuals earned and spent tokens across various categories – Knowledge, Creativity, Sustainability, Innovation, and Cultural Contributions. These tokens represented a form of social currency, reflecting the diverse contributions each person made to the collective progress. The value of tokens was determined through a consensus algorithm that considered the societal impact and innovation associated with everyone's actions. This dynamic valuation ensured that the currency was adaptable to changing circumstances, valuing contributions in line with the evolving needs and priorities of the community.

- As new fields of contribution emerged, the currency in HPN could adapt to incorporate these developments. For instance, if a novel area of cultural engagement gained significance, a new type of token specific to this domain could be introduced. This ensured that the currency was moldable to accommodate the evolving human contributions.
- A heightened sense of financial security significantly influenced the dynamics of the system. Individuals felt confident in engaging with community investment projects, and collaborative funding for impactful initiatives. Decentralized autonomous organizations and tokenized assets became integral parts to ensure fair and transparent wealth distribution. Individuals were also able to explore diverse economic opportunities within HPN as it recognized contributions beyond traditional metrics.
- HPN was governed by a network of diverse individuals. With a sense of economic stability, individuals actively participated in shaping policies and decision-making processes. This active involvement ensured that policies aligned with the collective aspirations of the community. Smart contracts and AI-driven decisionmaking mechanisms enabled the community to collectively shape the direction of the network.

#### Integrated Life Ecosystem:

- HPN's educational system focused on nurturing creativity, critical thinking, and multidisciplinary exploration. Learning was personalized, guiding individuals toward areas aligned with their passions and potential contributions to society. Knowledge tokens were earned through active engagement in intellectual pursuits. The pursuit of lifelong learning became a shared journey, propelling the community toward intellectual growth and adaptability.
- A centralized hub within HPN catered to mental and physical well-being. Healthcare, once a privilege, became a birthright. The healthcare system that prioritized prevention and mental health. Cutting-edge technologies ensured
accurate diagnostics and effective treatments, allowing the town's inhabitants to savor not just longevity but the vibrancy of life.

 Traditional career paths were replaced by a system where individuals could explore diverse professional avenues. Skills and interests were matched with real-world opportunities, promoting a fluid and purpose-driven approach to work. With a heightened sense of security, more individuals embarked on entrepreneurial ventures. Innovation tokens were earned through collaborative projects and problem-solving. HPN also facilitated global cultural exchanges, connecting individuals across borders to share experiences, ideas, and traditions. Cultural tokens were earned through participation in cross-cultural initiatives, fostering global interconnectedness.

#### Cultural and Environmental Stewardship:

 Personalized entertainment experiences ensured that individuals engaged with content that aligned with their values and interests. Entertainment tokens were earned by contributing to the creation and curation of culturally enriching content. HPN also promoted mindful leisure activities that contributed to emotional well-being. Immersive experiences, storytelling, and collaborative gaming fostered a sense of community.

In the Holistic Progression Network, the convergence of automation, technology and a human-centered philosophy created a systemic innovation that aligned with the aspirations of self-actualized individuals. It redefined progress, shifting the focus from mere economic growth to the holistic development of every individual, resulting in a society where flourishing was not just a goal but a shared reality. As the sun dipped below the horizon, casting hues of orange and pink across the sky, Lily reflected on the journey of Serenity Hills. The financial system, once a source of anxiety, had become a tool for empowerment and societal advancement.

## The Emergence of the Knowledge Capital Paradigm

Imagine a Knowledge Bank, a repository where individuals store their earned tokens, that grow over time. These stored tokens accrue interest, providing an additional incentive for ongoing intellectual contributions. The more one engages, shares, and collaborates, the more the Knowledge Bank flourishes.

Banked tokens serve multiple purposes. Firstly, they act as a safety net, providing individuals with a reservoir of tokens that can be tapped into during periods of

exploration or when embarking on new educational endeavors. This financial flexibility encourages risk-taking, allowing individuals to venture into uncharted intellectual territories without the fear of depleting their knowledge assets.

The interest-bearing aspect of banked tokens further encourages a mindset of lifelong learning, while instilling a sense of purpose. Individuals are motivated not just to earn tokens for immediate use but bank unused tokens to continually invest in their intellectual capital, knowing that the compounding interest in their Knowledge Bank will provide exponential returns in the future.

Some types of tokens that coexist with knowledge tokens:

- **Creativity Tokens**: These tokens represent creative contributions to various fields, including arts, design, music, and literature. Individuals earn creativity tokens by producing original works.
- Sustainability Tokens: As society places increasing importance on sustainability and eco-friendly practices, individuals and organizations can earn sustainability tokens by implementing and promoting environmentally conscious initiatives. These tokens could be used for accessing sustainable products, experiences, or supporting green projects.
- **Innovation Tokens**: Individuals contributing to groundbreaking technological advancements, scientific discoveries, and cutting-edge solutions can earn innovation tokens. These tokens facilitate participation in collaborative research projects, access to emerging technologies, or even investment in innovative startups.
- **Cultural Tokens**: Individuals preserving, promoting, or sharing cultural heritage and diversity could earn cultural tokens. These tokens might be exchanged for experiences related to cultural exploration, language learning, or participation in cultural exchange programs.
- **Emotional Intelligence Tokens**: Reflecting contributions to emotional wellbeing and interpersonal relationships, emotional intelligence tokens could be earned through acts of empathy, conflict resolution, and fostering positive connections. These tokens could facilitate participation in emotional intelligence workshops or therapeutic experiences.
- Entertainment Tokens: In the realm of digital and virtual experiences, entertainment tokens could be earned through the creation of engaging and entertaining content, such as games, virtual experiences, or digital art. These tokens could be used to access premium entertainment content or virtual experiences.

The accumulation of tokens serves as a direct measure of an individual or group's meritocracy. A good reputation in terms of meritocracy becomes crucial to attract the best talent. Simultaneously, the determinants of value are sentimental taste, personal idiosyncrasies, and craftsmanship. Human touch and involvement in the design process elevate the worth of products and services. The primary challenge for people is optimizing the allocation of time, talents, and empathy for the betterment of the society.

## Growing up with a Buddy

A young couple that wants their child – Sam – to have the best education find a special AI buddy program. As the child grows and begins to explore the world around them, the AI buddy adapts and evolves alongside, becoming a trusted peer.

As the child gets older, the AI buddy helps them build upon their interests. By the time they're twelve, Sam has started to enjoy art, thanks to the buddy's personalized learning plan and creative challenges. The AI buddy also introduces the child to new experiences and assists them in other aspects of life as well, such as maintaining relationships with friends and developing healthy habits.

When the Sam turns eighteen, they're ready to learn about value exchange and entrepreneurship. Guided by their lifelong learning assistant, they delve into the intricacies of creating and exchanging value in a rapidly evolving digital economy.

Beyond education, the AI buddy seamlessly integrates into other aspects of the Sam's life such as healthcare and entertainment. From monitoring and predicting health metrics to providing personalized entertainment recommendations, the AI buddy enhances the Sam's well-being and enjoyment.

## **Exploring IDEASPACE**

Sam, a 28-year-old individual, finds himself at the forefront of medical research, as he aspires for innovation to enhance human capabilities with technology. Guiding him on this path is an experienced practitioner, a multifaceted individual, who not only imparts guidance to students but also engages in experimental artistry. His creations contribute to the generative technology landscape, earning him creativity tokens from different organizations.

The interconnectedness of this society becomes evident as these creativity tokens hold real value as symbolic gestures and practical assets in the dynamic knowledge economy.

The government plays a role in fostering creativity and innovation. Sam, like every citizen, receives a Universal Basic Income (UBI) from the government. This financial support becomes the cornerstone for Sam's research, freeing him from financial constraints and allowing him to focus on the pursuit of knowledge and the creation of meaningful contributions to the medical field.

In order to develop his research further, Sam seeks for experts to collaborate with him. He ventures into the community of ideas known as Ideaspace — where he becomes part of an ecosystem comprising diverse audiences that converge to collaborate, share insights, and contribute to each other's intellectual growth.

In Ideaspace, Sam notices that individuals with value-based tokens representing their meritocracy are engaged in discussions within multiple e-communities. As a starting point, he is assisted in curating a community tailored to his research needs.

Sam engages in discussions with individuals for a collaborative venture.

Participant 1: My creativity tokens signify originality!

Participant 2: And mine signify groundbreaking research!

Sam: Let's channel that energy. How can we blend these tokens for something extraordinary?

Engaging with minds from varied backgrounds and expertise, he gains fresh perspectives, challenges his assumptions, and refines his research. The knowledge tokens he accumulates serve as gateways to advanced learning experiences, further expanding the horizons of medicinal innovation. These tokens, dynamic and fluid, also enable Sam to participate in interdisciplinary ventures, fostering innovation and pushing the boundaries of what's possible.

As the community in Ideaspace grew, navigating through diverse perspectives could present its own challenges. Balancing individual aspirations with collective goals required constant negotiation. The very abundance of value-based tokens sometimes led to clashes of egos. In the face of these challenges, Sam found himself immersed in discussions, navigating the delicate balance between individual expertise and collective vision. It wasn't just about the accumulation of tokens but the shared responsibility of progress.

### How do we get there?

Embarking on the journey toward realizing the vision of a society where fundamental human needs are recognized as rights, and self-actualization is nurtured, requires a concentrated effort from individuals and organizations alike. It begins with a collective shift in mindset, where we reevaluate the purpose of our endeavors and prioritize the holistic well-being of every individual. Organizations play a pivotal role in this transformation by embracing principles of social responsibility, sustainability, and human-centered design in their operations.

Education emerges as a cornerstone of this journey, equipping individuals with the knowledge, skills, and values needed to thrive in a rapidly changing world. Educational institutions need to evolve to foster critical thinking, creativity, and emotional intelligence, preparing students not just for careers but for a life of purpose and contribution.

Technological innovation serves as an enabler, providing the tools and platforms to create a more inclusive and interconnected society. AI, automation, and blockchain technologies are leveraged to streamline processes, enhance productivity, and facilitate equitable distribution of resources. The adoption of decentralized governance models ensures that decision-making power is distributed among stakeholders, fostering transparency, accountability, and participatory democracy.

At the heart of this journey lies a commitment to social justice and equity. Governments, civil society organizations, and international bodies collaborate to enact policies and initiatives that uphold the rights of every individual. Universal Basic Holism (UBH) becomes a policy, guaranteeing access to basic assets for all. Economic systems are reimagined to prioritize human well-being over profit, with redistribution mechanisms ensuring equitable distribution of resources.

To realize the vision outlined for the future of the financial system, a structured and iterative approach is essential. The following steps outline a pathway towards achieving this ambitious goal:

1. **Stakeholder Engagement**: The first step involves engaging key stakeholders from diverse backgrounds, including financial institutions, regulatory bodies, technology firms, academia, and various advocacy groups. Collaborative workshops, focus groups, and interviews can facilitate meaningful dialogue and insights, ensuring that the framework addresses the needs and concerns of all relevant stakeholders.

- Framework Refinement: Building on stakeholder feedback, the Holistic Progression Framework should be refined to ensure its comprehensiveness, relevance, and practicality. This may involve conducting further research, incorporating emerging trends, and streamlining the framework's structure and implementation guidelines.
- 3. **Pilot Implementation**: Once the framework is refined, its pilot implementations can be initiated in select market segments or geographical regions. Pilot programs provide valuable opportunities to test the effectiveness and feasibility of the framework in real-world scenarios, gather empirical data, and identify areas for optimization and improvement, including assessment based on Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs).
- 4. Partnership Development: Collaborating with strategic partners is essential for scaling the impact of the Holistic Progression Framework. This involves seeking partnerships with industry leaders, technology providers, government agencies, and non-profit organizations to leverage resources and networks for widespread adoption and implementation.
- 5. **Capacity Building**: To ensure successful implementation, stakeholder organizations should invest in capacity building initiatives. Training programs, workshops, and educational resources can empower professionals, policymakers, and community leaders with the knowledge needed to apply the framework effectively.
- Advocacy and Communication: Advocating for the adoption of the Framework requires effective communication and advocacy efforts, leveraging diverse channels to raise awareness, buy-in, and mobilize support among stakeholders, policymakers, and the public.
- 7. **Policy Influence**: Finally, stakeholders can contribute to shaping policy and regulations conducive to the framework's objectives by engaging with policymakers, participating in public consultations, and sharing evidence-based insights.

Ultimately, the journey toward a future where self-actualization is the norm, and every individual can flourish requires a fundamental shift in values, priorities, and systems. It demands courage and collaboration from all stakeholders as we navigate the complexities of a rapidly changing world. By embracing a shared vision of human flourishing and working together toward its realization, we can create a future where every individual can reach their full potential and contribute meaningfully to the world.

# Section 3

## **Disclosures**

# Scenario: Introducing the Holistic Progression Network

#### **Decentralized Water Harvesting and Purification System:**

Incorporates nanotechnology and smart sensors into a decentralized water harvesting and purification system that can efficiently collect, purify, and distribute water. The system uses solar-powered devices for energy, ensuring sustainability and accessibility in various environments.

#### Smart Agriculture Pods:

Modular, self-contained agriculture pods that utilize IoT and AI to optimize crop growth. These pods can be placed in urban areas, promoting local, sustainable food production. Implement hydroponic and aeroponic systems to minimize water usage and enhance efficiency.

#### **Universal Learning Platform:**

An adaptive, AI-driven learning platform that tailors educational content based on individual needs and passions. This platform incorporates emerging technology to provide immersive learning experiences that focus on developing creativity and critical thinking.

#### **Holistic Healthcare Hub:**

An integrated healthcare hub that prioritizes preventive care and mental health. It uses personalized health plans, continuous monitoring, and telemedicine for remote consultations.

#### Personalized Environmental Impact Tracker:

A device that tracks an individual's environmental impact. This tool could provide realtime feedback on sustainable practices, reward users with Sustainability Tokens, and encourage eco-friendly behaviors.

# The Emergence of the Knowledge Capital Paradigm

#### **Tokenomics Algorithm for HPN:**

An algorithm for the tokenomics of HPN, ensuring a fair and dynamic valuation of tokens based on value type (innovation, creativity, entertainment, etc.) and societal impact. Use of blockchain technology for transparency and security, allows the system to adapt to emerging fields of contribution.

#### **Token-Based Microfinance Platform:**

A microfinance platform uses HPN's tokenomics, allowing users to access investments for entrepreneurial ventures. Smart contracts automate investment terms, and AI assess the potential societal impact of each micro-business.

#### Knowledge Banking Ecosystem:

An ecosystem to secure knowledge tokens that accumulate interest over time. This includes personalized token repositories, exchange, and AI-powered assistance to explore new opportunities of creating and gaining knowledge/value. Additionally, this ecosystem also supports users to offer products, services, or expertise in exchange for knowledge tokens.

# Scenario: Growing up with a Buddy

#### **Adaptive Learning Suit**

A combination of wearable technology with AI algorithms to create a personalized learning experience for children. This suit analyzes the child's biometric data, brainwave patterns, and emotional responses to tailor educational content in real-time, ensuring optimal engagement and retention.

#### **Virtual Art Mentor**

A virtual reality (VR) application that simulates immersive art experiences and provides personalized guidance to budding young artists. Using advanced motion tracking and gesture recognition technology, this mentor assists children in exploring different art mediums, techniques, and styles, fostering creativity and self-expression.

#### **Value Creation Simulator**

A platform that gamifies the process of value creation and exchange, allowing students to learn essential economic concepts through interactive simulations and challenges. This simulator immerses users in virtual spaces, where they can exchange virtual assets, gaining hands-on experience in entrepreneurship and financial management.

#### **Health Guardian**

An AI-powered device that serves as a constant companion and guardian for children's health and well-being. Equipped with advanced biometric sensors and predictive analytics, this companion monitors the child's vital signs, sleep patterns, and activity levels, alerting parents to any potential health concerns and providing personalized recommendations for maintaining optimal health.

#### **Imagination Engine**

A platform that harnesses AI to fuel children's creativity and imagination. Using sophisticated neural networks and natural language processing algorithms, this engine generates endless storytelling prompts, artistic inspiration, and imaginative worlds for children to explore, sparking limitless creativity and innovation.

#### **Social Skills Simulator**

An immersive application that simulates realistic social interactions and scenarios to help children develop essential social skills and emotional intelligence. Through lifelike avatars, interactive role-playing exercises, and real-time feedback, this simulator provides a safe and supportive environment for children to practice communication, empathy, and conflict resolution skills.

#### **Habit Formation Coach**

A smart device that uses biofeedback technology and behavioral psychology principles to help children cultivate positive habits and routines. This coach delivers personalized reminders, rewards, and incentives based on the child's unique habits and goals, fostering healthy lifestyle choices and self-discipline from an early age.

#### Lifelong Learning Companion

An AI-powered companion that accompanies children throughout their educational journey, providing continuous support, guidance, and inspiration. With access to vast databases of educational resources, personalized learning plans, and interactive learning experiences, this companion empowers children to pursue lifelong learning and personal growth, adapting to their evolving interests and aspirations over time.

# Scenario: Exploring IDEASPACE

#### **Collaborative Innovation Network - IDEASPACE:**

A collaborative platform for interdisciplinary ventures. It connects individuals with diverse skills and interests, fostering innovation and pushing the boundaries of what's possible. It also integrates Innovation Tokens to recognize contributions to groundbreaking projects. Backed by a <u>Token-Based Expert Matching Algorithm</u> that matches individuals with complementary value-based tokens for collaborative ventures based on their research interests, expertise, and past contributions.

#### Token-Based Educational Funding:

A system for leveraging banked tokens as collateral for educational funding. This system could enable individuals to access financial support for educational pursuits while leveraging their intellectual capital as security.

#### Virtual Idea/ Innovation Token Incubator

An immersive virtual environment where researchers can brainstorm, prototype, and refine their ideas collaboratively. This platform could incorporate virtual reality (VR) technology to simulate real-world laboratory settings and facilitate interactive brainstorming sessions among participants. Additionally, the community collectively decides on the allocation of Innovation Tokens to support promising ventures. Automated assessments ensure a fair and merit-based distribution of resources.

## Conclusion

Moving forward, this project does not intend to challenge nor endorse any specific socioeconomic framework, whether it be capitalism, socialism, or otherwise. Instead, it transcends these conventional paradigms, aiming for a deeper understanding of human needs and aspirations within the context of evolving societal structures. While some may view initiatives like Universal Basic Income or Assets as socialist welfare systems, they are, in fact, responses to the changing dynamics of a capitalist economy. Capitalism's unprecedented success has led to technological advancements that may render traditional employment models obsolete, necessitating social corrections like UBI/A to ensure equitable distribution of resources without impeding progress (Tal, 2020 & IFTF 2017). This approach represents an evolutionary upgrade, aligning human ingenuity with ecological wisdom to address contemporary challenges and foster self-sustaining systems. Ultimately, the project emphasizes solutions that surpass ideological divides in pursuit of collective well-being and progress.

In conclusion, the Holistic Progression Network presents a transformative vision for the future of the financial system, leveraging a multidimensional framework that emphasizes lifelong learning, skill acquisition, and the exchange of real value. Through the integration of AI, blockchain technology, and tokenization, individuals are empowered to cultivate their intellectual capital, collaborate across diverse communities, and contribute meaningfully to societal progress. The envisioned Knowledge Bank and value-based token ecosystem offer innovative solutions to address the challenges of traditional employment, fostering a culture of creativity, innovation, and collective prosperity. As we embark on this journey towards a more inclusive and sustainable financial system, it is imperative that we continue to iterate, refine, and adapt our strategies to meet the evolving needs of society. Together, it's possible to co-create a future where knowledge is currency, collaboration is key, and human potential knows no bounds.

## References

Arendt, H. (1958). The human condition. http://ci.nii.ac.jp/ncid/BA03138529

- Armstrong, M. (2023, October 6). The tasks AI should take over, according to workers. World Economic Forum. https://www.weforum.org/agenda/2022/04/tasks-aiworkers-usa/
- Berger, R. (2023, February 23). Side Hustle offers new professional puzzle for upcoming generations. *Forbes*. https://www.forbes.com/sites/rodberger/2023/02/22/sidehustle-offers-new-professional-puzzle-for-upcominggenerations/?sh=3ec2ac3172b2
- Chang, MPH, C. D., & Friedman, S. (n.d.). *Blockchain in health and life insurance*. Deloitte United States. https://www2.deloitte.com/us/en/pages/life-sciences-andhealth-care/articles/blockchain-in-insurance.html
- Dirik, I. (2020, August 13). Why it's time to change the conversation around synthetic media. *VentureBeat*. https://venturebeat.com/media/why-its-time-to-change-the-conversation-around-synthetic-media/
- Elliott, M. (2023, March 31). *Transforming Education with Web 3.0 and Tokenization*. https://www.linkedin.com/pulse/transforming-education-web-30-tokenizationmark-elliott-edd/
- Feyen, E. H. B., Natarajan, H., & Saal, M. (2023). Fintech and the Future of Finance: Market and policy implications (English). In *Washington, D.C.: World Bank Group*.

http://documents.worldbank.org/curated/en/099450005162250110/P173006002 28b70070914b0b5edf26e2f9f Fromm, E. (1976). *To have or to be?* Harper & Row, New York.

- Gorbis, M. (2024, January 19). *The more equitable future begins in the imagination*. IFTF. https://www.iftf.org/insights/the-more-equitable-future-begins-in-theimagination/
- *Great Unretirement: Why we need to support older workers*. (2023, February 28). World Economic Forum. https://www.weforum.org/agenda/2022/10/greatunretirement-older-people-working-longer/
- Havea, J. (n.d.). *Creativity as currency*. https://www.smallgiants.com.au/ideas-andstories/creativity-as-currency
- Hill, L. (2018, October 1). *Self interest rightly understood*. Adam Smith Works. https://www.adamsmithworks.org/documents/self-interest-rightly-understood
- IFTF. (2017, December). *IFTF Universal Basic Assets*. https://www.iftf.org/projects/uba/

Lielacher, A. (2023, June 26). The rise of football fan tokens: What are they & Do we really need them? *Cryptonews*. https://cryptonews.com/exclusives/rise-of-football-fan-tokens-what-are-they-do-we-really-need-them.htm

- Manu, A. (2020a). The future of knowing. Dynamic Future-Proofing.
- Manu, A. (2020b). The richly augmented future. *Dynamic Future-Proofing*.
- Manu, A. (2023a). Disruptive Futures Opportunity Canvas.
- Manu, A. (2023b). What is Money if not Information?
- Martchouk, N. (2024, April 8). *The History of the Financial System trimplement blog*. Trimplement Blog. https://trimplement.com/blog/2020/08/history-financesystem/

Maslow, A. H. (1943). A theory of human motivation. *Psychological Review*, *50*(4), 370– 396. https://doi.org/10.1037/h0054346

- Miner, M. (2023, November 9). *Emerging Technologies Part 1: What is the Metaverse, how do we prepare teachers and families for it, and what does it mean for K-12 education?* American Consortium for Equity in Education. https://www.aceed.org/emerging-technologies-in-k-12-education-part-1-what-is-the-metaversehow-to-prepare-teachers-and-families-for-it-and-what-it-means-for-k-12education/
- Murphy, C. B. (2024, January 27). Why social responsibility matters to businesses. Investopedia. https://www.investopedia.com/ask/answers/041015/why-socialresponsibility-important-business.asp
- N, M. V. (2021, December 15). Self-Actualization is an Act of Social Responsibility. *Medium*. https://medium.com/illumination/self-actualization-is-an-act-of-socialresponsibility-5c99fbcbdd92
- Nõmmik, S. (2024, January 19). *Story e-Estonia*. e-Estonia. https://e-estonia.com/story/
- O'Reilly, M., Senawi, D., Eckenrode, J., & Kelly, E. (2021). A higher bottom line: The future of financial services. In *Deloitte Development LLC*. https://www2.deloitte.com/us/en/pages/financial-services/articles/future-offinancial-services.html
- Quantum Foresight. (n.d.). *Consumer Technology: Trends Report 2024, Quantum Foresight*. https://www.quantumrun.com/list/Consumer-Technology:-Trends-Report-2024,-Quantumrun-Foresight/154612/2056

- Quartz. (2017, February 16). *Bill Gates thinks we should tax the robot that takes your job* [Video]. YouTube. https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=nccryZOcrUg
- Rouhiainen, L. (2019, October 14). *How AI and data could personalize higher Education*. Harvard Business Review. https://hbr.org/2019/10/how-ai-and-data-couldpersonalize-higher-education
- Rushkoff, D. (2018, June 10). Reimagining Money Douglas Rushkoff Medium. *Medium.* https://rushkoff.medium.com/reimagining-money-d665e658dddc
- Sciforce. (2023, September 12). *AI Revolution in EdTech: AI in Education Trends and Successful Cases*. https://medium.com/sciforce/ai-revolution-in-edtech-ai-in-education-trends-and-successful-cases-7d5b7d69b77b
- Tal, D. (n.d.). *Automation is the new outsourcing*. Quantumrun. https://www.quantumrun.com/Macro-prediction/automation-new-outsourcingfuture-work-p5
- Tal, D. (2020, September 14). *Universal Basic Income cures mass unemployment*. Quantumrun. https://www.quantumrun.com/Prediction/universal-basic-incomecures-mass-unemployment
- Tapscott, A. (2021, August 24). Alex Tapscott: Why DeFi and smart contracts are the future of finance. *Financialpost*. https://financialpost.com/fp-finance/fintech/alex-tapscott-why-defi-and-smart-contracts-are-the-future-of-finance

# **Appendix A: Opportunity Canvas for AI**



#### Technology Description

Artificial Intelligence (AI) refers to the development of computer systems capable of performing tasks that typically require human intelligence. These tasks can include learning, reasoning, problem-solving, perception, language understanding, and decision-making.

Al systems often leverage techniques such as ML, deep learning, natural language processing, and computer vision to analyze and interpret complex data, adapt to new information, and generate intelligent responses.

Al has diverse applications across various fields, including healthcare, finance, manufacturing, education, and entertainment, where it contributes to automation, data analysis, predictive modeling, and the creation of personalized experiences.

> Diversity and





**Current Applications** 

#### Storyline for the Future

In this transformed world, the exchange of data for transactions has become the cornerstone of the global economy. Individuals and businesses leverage their data assets as a form of currency, facilitated by systems that ensure secure and transparent data transactions. Al has emerged as a powerful tool for managing data, optimizing data utilization, and facilitating seamless exchanges between parties, fostering an ecosystem where data serves as a fundamental driver of economic growth.

This digital ecosystem seamlessly integrates virtual and physical realities. Within this ecosystem, individuals can engage in a myriad of activities, from conducting business transactions and immersive virtual experiences to accessing personalized healthcare solutions and education.

Individuals no longer rely solely on monetary currency but engage in the exchange of tangible value, including personalized skills and data, for personal as well as communal benefit. The transition toward the exchange of real value has empowered individuals to offer their unique services and data in exchange for goods, experiences, or knowledge.

People have embraced the concept of data as currency as it holds true value backed by human beings. There is active participation in data exchange that offers a diverse range of benefits. Professionals now have the option to utilize their expertise or personal data, providing valuable insights to businesses in exchange for customized services, exclusive experiences, and personalized incentives. Material scarcity has been overcome through collaborative efforts within e-societies, where interconnected digital governance structures promote the equitable distribution of resources and services.

In a post-scarcity society, the traditional notion of work and its relationship to the acquisition of resources and wealth undergoes a significant transformation. With the elimination of material scarcity, the concept of work shifts from being a means of survival to a form of personal fulfilment, and contribution to the communal well-being. This redefinition of work allows individuals to pursue activities that align with their interests, leading to a diversification of occupations and a greater emphasis on creativity.

Moreover, Al and machines has replaced entry-level and labor-intensive jobs, leading to the utilization of cost savings for community skilling initiatives and the provision of other benefits aimed at human development. This, combined with the concept of work redefined has resulted in decentralized structures involving different entities serving each other, replacing the conventional employer-employee relationships.

# Appendix B: Richly Imagine Future Scenario

Note for the Audience:

The following foresight scenario is presented as a richly imagined depiction of a potential future state. It is important to acknowledge that this scenario represents an idealized vision crafted to delineate the aspirations and goals we aim to achieve.

As such, it should be interpreted within the context of envisioning possibilities rather than predicting certainties. This approach encourages bold experimentation in terms of generation of ideas and initiatives which are aimed at realizing this envisioned ideal. Welcome to Serenity Hills, where a quiet revolution whispers promises of a life unburdened by survival worries.





Lily opened her eyes to a world where life's essentials were sacred rights.

She reminisces about how this world was transformed.





Grassroots movements gained momentum, advocating for recognition of fundamental human needs as rights.

Communities globally innovate decentralized water solutions and sustainable agriculture, ensuring no one goes to bed hungry.

Global crises prompt introspection. Governments and international collaboration sets standards for recognizing essentials as rights.

And now, decentralized power structures and local councils empower every voice. Lily becomes intricately woven into participatory democracy.





She engages with technology, connecting globally in the IDEASPACE, which fosters dialogues transcending geographical boundaries, and collaboration of innovative ideas.



Lily's world comprises individuals, secured in their basic needs, striving for continual self-improvement, driven by purpose, creativity, and autonomy.

#### Introducing Holistic Progression Network (HPN) –

A Blueprint for Human Flourishing, envisions a society where flourishing is a shared reality.





#### **Universal Basic Holism (UBH)** ensures access to nourishing food, comfortable shelter, clean water, and reliable internet, eliminating economic barriers.



HPN operates on a decentralized blockchain, utilizing tokens for various contributions. Diverse governance ensures policies align with collective aspirations.

Tokens adapt to emerging fields, ensuring the currency is moldable and flexible, reflecting evolving human contributions. Educational system, healthcare hub, and fluid career paths create a holistic life ecosystem, nurturing creativity, wellbeing, and purpose-driven work.

Cultural exchanges, entertainment, and environmental initiatives earn tokens, resulting in a sense of community and global interconnectedness.



Increased financial security empowers community investments, collaborative funding, and fair resource distribution.

As the sun sets on Serenity Hills, Lily reflects on a journey where HPN now transforms financial systems to empower societal advancement.

